LICENSING AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

16 April 2018



Minutes of the Licensing and General Purposes Committee held at the Town Hall, Bexhill-on-Sea on Monday 16 April 2018 at 6:30pm.

Committee Members present: Councillors C.J. Saint (Chairman), R.K. Bird, G.S. Browne, P.R. Douart, Mrs D.C. Earl-Williams, S.D. Elford, K.M. Field and I.G.F. Jenkins.

Other Members present: Councillor K.P. Dixon.

Advisory officers present: Executive Director, Executive Director, Democratic Services Manager and Democratic Services Officer.

LG17/16. **MINUTES**

The Chairman was authorised to sign the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing and General Purposes Committee held on 22 January 2018 as a correct record of the proceedings.

LG17/17. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Lord Ampthill, A.K. Azad, Mrs M.L. Barnes (ex-officio), Mrs S. Hart and Mrs J.M. Hughes (Vice-Chairman). The Chairman extended best wishes for a speedy recovery to Councillor Mrs Hughes, who had recently undergone surgery.

PART I – RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

LG17/18. **REVIEW OF LOCAL PAY AWARD**

(5.1)

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director on the Review of the Local Pay Award 2018. Pay award discussions had been on-going with Staff Side/UNISON and Members' views were being sought on proposals for a pay settlement to enable negotiation with Staff Side/UNISON to be progressed.

The Executive Director outlined the key issues to be taken into account which included current inflation and future trends; the national local government pay award that had been proposed and accepted by the unions as a two year award of 2% for each year; the current budget allocation of 1%; the 2.5% pay award requested by Staff Side/UNISON (detailed at Appendix A to the report); the Living Wage (from the Living Wage Foundation separate from the National Living Wage), which sought to provide a socially acceptable wage level and would result in an increase of 3.6% for those staff affected; and recruitment trends. The local pay award had previously been linked to Members' Allowances, however the Independent Remuneration Panel meeting in November would make recommendations for Councillor Allowances from May 2019, which may or may not recommend that this arrangement continued.

Members were keen to support an increase of 2% for two years and sought clarity on a number of issues prior to final determination, as follows:

- the number of staff effected by the Living Wage was very small, circa 8;
- recruitment and retention difficulties recruiting to professional posts was not linked to salary levels, it was more complex than that and included, amongst other reasons, a general shortage of professionals in the market place; in comparison to neighbouring Councils, Rother District Council generally paid at a lower level for some posts.
- budget impact if an increase of 2% was agreed rather than 1% there would not be a full year impact in year 1, as the pay award was effective from September and was therefore only for seven months; the difference between a 1% and a 2% increase would result in an additional circa £80,000 per year; and
- whether the gender pay gap would be addressed in the pay award. It was clarified that staff were paid equally for carrying out the same roles within the Council, however there were currently more male employees in senior roles which lead to misinterpretation of the data. If there were any equal pay issues the pay award would not address these, but other procedures were already in place to prevent discrimination.

Members were keen to reward and recompense the staff employed by the Council and therefore agreed to recommend to Cabinet that the Council continued to support the Living Wage Foundation for the lower paid permanent staff and that a 2% pay award for two years be approved.

RECOMMENDED: That Cabinet be requested to recommend to Council that:

- the Council's commitment to matching the Living Wage from the Living Wage Foundation be continued for staff on SCP6 for 2018/19 and 2019/20 (representing a pay settlement offer of 3.6% for these staff only); and
- 2) subject to the Council's current financial position and outlook being maintained, a two year pay settlement increase of 2% for 2018/19 and 2019/20 be approved.

PART II – DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

LG17/19. SENIOR MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURING

(5.2)

The Executive Director outlined the recent departures of three Service Managers seen within the Senior Management Team of the Council. As a result, the Executive Directors had taken the opportunity to review the structure of the Council with a view to ensuring that the Council delivered on the Rother 2020 programme of savings and additional income, along with continuing to deliver the Council's range of services.

The main changes were that the three Service Manager posts arising as a result of the recent resignations would be replaced by two Heads of Service with revised job descriptions. The new Senior Management structure (as seen in Appendix A to the report) came into force with effect from 1 April 2018. It was advised that there would be no redundancies as a result, with changes of line management being the only impact on staff. The two vacant posts had been advertised, a sufficient number of applications had been received to shortlist and interviews for both positions would be concluded imminently; appointments would be announced by the middle of the following week. For Members' information, the functions within each of the revised service areas could be seen in Appendix B to the report.

Members raised concerns surrounding increased workload for officers as a result of a decrease in the number of roles at senior level. The Executive Director explained that the structure would evolve over time to ensure the best way to deliver the services and manage expectations; the process of succession planning had become less easy with the removal of a compulsory retirement age.

RESOLVED: That the revised Senior Management structure effective from 1 April 2018 was noted.

CHAIRMAN

The meeting closed at 6:55pm

LGP180416.lc/lh